CORENet Phase 1 – Final RFP – Questions and Answers

Solicitation # HC1047-08-R-4002
April 30, 2008

This is a working document and not all questions have been answered at this time.  This document will be updated twice each week until all timely questions have been answered.  Please note that the following answers have been revised since they were originally posted: numbers 4, 17, 84, 95, 97, 119.
The current due date of 05 May 08 for the receipt of proposals 
will be extended.  The new date will be identified in an amendment
to the RFP to be released on or about 01 May 08.

1.
There was no “Synopsis” on the FBO site that would indicate if or when questions would be entertained and answered by the Government.  Is it the Government’s intent to answer any questions submitted on the Final RFP?   If the answer is yes, is there a cut-off date established as to when they can be asked and still be answered before the submission date?

That “Synopsis” or “Description” did not originally appear because of a problem with the new FBO site.  The description was later updated.  Yes, the Government will answer any questions submitted via e-mail to Nathan Wheeling at Nathan.Wheeling@disa.mil no later than 3:00PM EDT on 18 April, 2008.
2.
Page 84, Section M.3.4 Factor 4 – COST AND PRICE FACTOR:  Section B states, “The Government will evaluate the proposed rates for the labor categories and other direct costs (ODCs) in Section B of the solicitation for completeness and reasonableness.  Determine the reasonableness of the price per sample order task and the overall price on the basis of adequate price competition and by comparison with the IGCE.”  Seeing as there are no proposed labor categories in Section B and there are no sample tasks provided to the offerors, how will this evaluation be accomplished?

“Proposed rates” refer to the labor categories and rates proposed by the contractor.  There are no sample tasks provided, and that language will be removed from the RFP.  The second quoted sentence above will read “Determine the reasonableness of the overall price on the basis of adequate price competition and by comparison with the IGCE.”  
3.
On page 84, Section D states, “The Government will base the price evaluation for all proposals on the total Discounted Life Cycle Cost (DLCC) for each proposal.  Calculate the DLCC using the proposed rates for the labor categories and the mark-up and profit percentages for ODCs listed in Section B.  Contractor-generated labor categories will not be included as part of the DLCC evaluation….”  All of the labor categories we propose are contractor-generated, as none are provided by the Government.  How will the DLCC price evaluation be conducted if that is the case?
The RFP will be amended to indicate that Contractor-generated labor categories will be included in the DLCC.  The DLCC price evaluation will be conducted by applying the appropriate discount factors on the total price by year. 
4.
Our company's 8(a) status expires on May 6, 2008.  Does this disqualify us from this opportunity, or does the fact that we are 8(a) at time of submittal leave us qualified?

See DFARS Clause 252.219-7010 (Alt A), on Page 43 of the RFP, as well as Section M.1, on Page 72.  The Offeror must be an SBA certified 8(a) Program Participant at the time the proposal is submitted.  Currently, offers are due 5 May 2008 at 2:00 PM EDT.  
5.
Reference L.6.2.2-Should the Operating Level Agreements (OLAs) be included with the SLAs as an appendix to Volumes I, II, and IV?

Yes.

6.
Reference L.2.3 (3rd paragraph)-These instructions and the PWS template seem to contradict the guidance elsewhere regarding the placement of the SLAs in the proposal? In fact, the PWS Template still calls for a subsection per SMF (including the associated OLA and SLA). Likewise the PWS Template strongly implies a QAP per SMF. 

a.
Should we simply assume that the instructions in section L.2.3 supersede the PWS Template?

No – see Question # 6b for a detailed clarification.

b.
Is it a correct assumption that, given that the SLAs (and, perhaps, the OLAs) will be in a separate appendix, it is incumbent on the proposer to make clear the connection between a given SLA and the SMF(s) to which it applies? 

Section L.2.3, the PWS Template and the QAP Template require clarification, as follows:

· Section 3 of the PWS will consist of multiple sub-sections, each providing the required information for a discrete function, as defined by the Offeror.

· A function may be a specific SMF, or may address multiple SMFs or part of an SMF, at the Offeror’s discretion.  The intent is that all processes and tenants identified in the MOF SMFs for which the Offeror would have responsibility be addressed in one manner or the other in Section 3.
· Any SLAs or OLAs that will be applied to the responsibilities identified for that function will be referenced in that sub-section.
· The SLAs and OLAs will be contained in a separate appendix.

· There is a single Quality Assurance Plan, which will be included in Section 4 of the PWS and counts towards the PWS page limits.  However, Section 6 of the QAP (“REVIEW OF TASK WORK PROCESSES AND WORK PRODUCTS”) requires a separate sub-section for each SLA.  Therefore Section 6 will be treated separately from the QAP, as follows:
· It will not count towards any page limits,

· It will be included as a separate appendix, titled “QAP for Individual SLAs”.
The PWS and QAP templates, Section L 2.3 and Section L 6.2.2 will be amended to reflect the above.

7.
Reference L.2.3 (5th paragraph)-Is it the Government’s intent that the QAP and the QASP be placed in the PWS or are they to be placed in Volume II in the section titled Performance and Quality Management? 
It is the Government’s intent that the QAP and the QASP be placed in the PWS.  See also Question #6 regarding Section 6 of the QAP.
a.
Will the Government have a need to be able to extract intact either or both after award, for example as a reference during the contract? 

Yes.  The Government will have a need to be able to extract the QAP after award.  See also Question #6 regarding Section 6 of the QAP.

b.
Is it expected that the QASP will tie back to the individual SLAs (which are in an Appendix)?

No.  The QASP is intended to be a higher-level plan detailing how the Government can most effectively ensure that the contractor is following the QAP.

c.
If so, how does the Government wish that connection to be identified?

N/A

d.
Is it the Government’s intent that the QAP should address the quality of the systems being managed (as implied in the 6th paragraph “the QAP must provide for the identification of non-performing equipment….”) or the quality of the performance of the contractor staff (especially in light of the fact that many routine operations of CORENet are performed by Government staff)?

It is the Government’s intent that the QAP should address the quality of the performance of the contractor staff.  This statement shall be amended to reflect this.

8.
Reference L.3.1-Does the reference to a “one page summary” mean a one page summary for each past performance citation or a one page overall summary of all citations?

Per Section L.3.0, “A 1-page introduction, or summary, of each effort in the Offeror’s format may be included prior to the proposal data contained in Volume III, Section 1.”

9.
Reference L.3.1-Does the reference to “labor categories” mean the labor categories of the referenced contracts or the labor categories that might be proposed for this response (per L.4.2)?

All elements under L.3.0 Volume III reference Offerors’ past performance.  This volume shall not include proposed labor categories.

10.
Reference L.4.1 and L.4.2.- In responding to these particular SMFs, is the proposer to assume the breakdown of duties described in Attachment J-8 (and the corresponding descriptions in the PWS) or are we to price these SMF’s as though they are to be performed in their entirety by the contractor?

The Offeror is to assume the breakdown of duties described in Attachment J-8 (and the corresponding descriptions in the PWS) and price the SMFs accordingly.

11.
Reference L.7-In which volume would the Government like the hard-copy and the softcopy (see L.6.3.8) of the slides placed? Is it the Government’s intent to provide the softcopy of the orals MS Powerpoint slides to the offeror at the time of the presentation for loading onto a computer provided by the offeror (or by the Government?)? 

The Government will have the presentation loaded on a PC to ensure a prompt start at the scheduled time to the presentation.  However, the Offeror may still bring a softcopy and new handouts if it was necessary to change the presentation between proposal submission and the oral presentation.

12.
Reference L.1.2 and L.2.2-Given the need to state that the proposal is good for 270 days, should the same statement be included in the Cost/Price Proposal?

Yes.  This requirement will be added to L.4.
13.  References: Section L and M.  There is wording in sections L and M that states that the offeror’s proposal “must meet all mandatory solicitation requirements” (e.g. M.1 A.), and in other areas it states that the “all the objectives specified in the solicitation are mandatory” (e.g. L.1.1).

Question:  Is the Government using the words “mandatory requirements” and “mandatory objectives” interchangeably in this solicitation?  If not what are the mandatory solicitation requirements that must be met?

The language in Section L.1.1 will be amended as follows:  the statement "All the objectives specified in the solicitation are mandatory" will be replaced with "The Offeror shall submit proposals in accordance with the objectives specified in the solicitation.  Objectives are not mandatory; however, proposals will be evaluated based on the Offeror's ability to meet the solicitation objectives."

14.  References: M.3.4, Factor 4 paragraph D, and L.4.2, paragraph (2).

 “Contractor generated labor categories will not be included as part of the DLCC evaluation”.  And, “The Offeror shall provide labor rate costs for each labor category they propose”  

Question:  We were not able to find Government supplied labor categories, qualifications, and descriptions.  Is it the Government’s intent to provide them or is the contractor expected to generate labor categories, qualifications, and descriptions? If the offeror is to provide how will they be handled in the DLCC evaluation? 

 See Question #3
15.  Reference:  Section L.4.1.  “The Offeror shall develop cost/price information for the following four Service Management Functions in the PWS: (1) Service Monitoring and Control, (2) Service Desk, (3) Release Management, and (4) Network Administration.  Pricing for the SMFs will be reviewed for completeness and reasonableness.  Cost/Price realism may be conducted on the SMF pricing.” 

Question: Are the four SMF’s listed in L.4.1 the sample task orders that Government will evaluate as stated in M.3.4 Factor 4, paragraph B. “reasonableness of the price per sample task order” and the sample task orders referenced for evaluation purposes in paragraph D (DLCC evaluation)?

Any reference to 'sample task orders' is incorrect.  No sample task orders will be provided.  The RFP will be amended accordingly.
16.  Reference: L.4.2, paragraph (2) “The Offeror shall provide labor rate costs for each labor category they propose to be used throughout the life of the contract. These labor rate costs will be included in the contract and be the basis for negotiation of the follow on task orders.” 

Question. Upon contract award, will the Government issue task orders for each of the listed SMF’s? 

The Government does not intend to issue task orders corresponding to SMF's.  Rather, one task order will be issued to include all CORENet services.

17.  Reference: L.2.5 Phase-in.   “phase-in from the current contract to full assumption of CORENet responsibility.  Full phase-in should be accomplished in no more than 3 months.”  

Question:  Is Phase-in to be priced separately? If the answer is yes, are you looking for phase-in to be priced on a T&M basis, and post phase-in as the FFP CLINS?   

The Government is not requiring the Offeror to price Phase-in separately.  FFP applies to Phase-in.
18.  Reference: Page 10 of 85, Section B CORENet Acquisition Strategy.  “Phase 1 will maintain the current scope of services; include the Joint Task Force-Global Network Operations (JTF-GNO) network supporting about 450 additional users at the DISA Headquarters compound…”

Question: What level of support or composite of services will be provided to/for the JTF-GNO?

The JTF-GNO administrative network will be fully integrated with the CORENet.  The JTF-GNO personnel will become users of the CORENet, and will be provided the set of services called for in the RFP.  
19.  Reference: CORENet Technical Architecture, Page 9 of 12, Section 6.2.  “An automated VoIP call management system, IP Express, has been implemented for the Help Desk”

Question: Is this system handling calls for assistance from the user community, or is it for internal use only within the help desk?  Is this system providing call statistics?  Is this system integrated with the Remedy System?

This system is handling calls for assistance from the user community.  It is not integrated with other DISA Remedy or DoD trouble management systems.
20.  Reference: CORENet Technical Architecture, Page 9 of 12, Section 6.2.  “In addition, RightAnswers’ web-based user self-service application, Knowledgebase, has been deployed on the CORENet intranet.”

Question: Is this Knowledgebase (KB) currently integrated with the Remedy system or must a manual process occur to update ticket and user information? If the process is manual, what is the process?

Tickets submitted through KB are fed into the existing trouble ticket system. At this time, information updating to KB is a manual process performed by Call Center personnel.
21.  Reference: CORENet DISC Organizations Functions and Missions, Page 1 of 10, Section 1- Item 2.  “Facilitate data exchange between ITAMS and DPAS”

Question: How is data exchange currently performed? If it is a manual process, what is that process?

This is a proposed future function.  ITAMS is the Altiris asset management system; it is planned to have an automated or semi-automated transfer of data between the two systems. 
22.  Reference: Attachment J5, CORENet DISC Organizations Functions and Missions, Page 1 of 10, Section 2- Item 1.  “Spillages”

Question: Can you please define “spillages”. This term commonly refers to, at times, unauthorized distribution of classified material. Is the placement of this item with the Budget Management Team for cost reimbursement? 

This term does refer to unauthorized distribution of classified material, and is placed within the Budget Management Team for cost reimbursement.
23.  Reference:  Attachment J11 (with regard to Attachment J5 Page 3 of 10, Section 1- Item 1.A.1-3).  

Question:  Is the RITS process completely automated”

The process is not completely automated, requiring manual routing and updating actions. 

24.  Reference:  Attachment J11 (with regard to Attachment J5 Page 3 of 10, Section 1- Item 1.A.1-3).  

 “Develop, schedule and monitor project progress through the SCR, DISANet Technical Staff Notification (DTSN) and DISANet Rollout Notification (DRN).”

Question: Is the DRN an automated process? Is the overall Requirements process an automated work flow?

Neither the overall requirements process nor DRN process is a fully automated work flow at this time.  See Attachment J.10, “Enterprise Management Infobase” for more information on the change notice process.
25.  Reference:  Attachment J5, CORENet DISC Organizations Functions and Missions, 

Page 3 of 10, Section 2- Item b. 2) and 3).  “System Change Requests”

Question: What is the System Change Request Process? Is it an automated process?

The System Change Request (SCR) process as used here refers to the process of creating SCRs, DTSNs and DRNs as a means of documenting up-coming changes on the CORENet; it is not fully automated.   See Attachment J.10, “Enterprise Management Infobase” for more information on the change notice process.

26.  Reference:  Attachment J5, CORENet DISC Organizations Functions and Missions, 

Page 3 of 10, Section 2- Item b. 2) and 3).  “DISANet Technical Staff Notifications (DTSNs)”

Question: Is the DTSN an automated process? To what level is it integrated with the other tools, systems and processes described in the provided documentation?

Per Questions #24 and 25, see Attachment J.10, “Enterprise Management Infobase” for more information on the change notice process.  
27.  Reference:  Attachment J5, CORENet DISC Organizations Functions and Missions, Page 5 of 10, under “Functions: c.”  “Monitors DCC controlled network resources to ensure all components operate within approved standards of performance, reliability, and availability”  

Question: What tools are/is the DCC using to ensure approved standards operations, reliability and availability?  Are the tools used by the DCC automated and integrated into a common architecture?

CORENet system management and monitoring tools are identified in the “DISANet System Management Tools” worksheet of Attachment J.3, “Software Inventory”.   With the exceptions of  “Dell Client Manager”, “REM/Retina” and “Hercules”, the DCC employs the tools listed under “Other Management Software.  Several tools, to include Sitescope, HP Openview, and Perfmon, are integrated with the NetCool Suite, and it is planned to integrate all tools capable of doing so with NetCool.
28.  Reference:  Attachment J9, DISANet Configuration Board Guidelines, Page 4 of 10, Section 2.1- Second to last bullet item, Page 4 of 10, Section 2.2-  “Administer configuration management tools, including new releases, setting project defaults, and overseeing integrity of the project files”; and “CPM will use existing configuration management tools to document….”

Questions: Which tool(s) is/are DISA currently using to administer, monitor and verify the integrity of the project files?  What is the application foundation of the DISANet Enterprise Management Information System (DEMI) and is this system integrated with any other systems within DISA?

a) At present, the DISC is managing projects using Microsoft Project; data entry is a manual process.  Integrity of project files is maintained through simple file access permissions.  

b) DEMI is an SQL-based database; at present it is not integrated with any other DISC or DISA systems.

29.  Reference:  Attachment J9, DISANet Configuration Board Guidelines, Page 4 of 10, Section 2.1- Last bullet item.  “Administer the DISANet Asset Management Database”

Question: What application is currently being used as the DISANet Asset Management Database? 

There is at present no unified asset management system for the CORENet infrastructure.  The DISC performs limited asset management using the DISANet Enterprise Management Information System (DEMI) (see Attachment J10).  This provides asset management for CORENet server and network infrastructure devices.  Organizations in the DISA Directorate that perform software and centralized DISA client (PC and laptop) procurement and licensing/warranty maintenance for the CORENet in support of the DISC perform asset management for these systems.  Inventory management for the CORENet infrastructure is provided through Altiris tools.  Planning is now underway to integrate these multiple efforts into a true CORENet asset management system using the Altiris asset management tool suite.  The proposed architecture will be posted as an attachment to the RFP.  
30.  Reference:  DISANet Configuration Board Guidelines, Page 5 of 10, Section 2.3- “…to the System Change Requests (triggers) identified in section 1.1.1.1, as related to the DISANet….”

Question: Where is section 1.1.1.1 located? It does not appear to be located in this attachment.

This and several other section references are in error; a corrected version of this document will be posted to FedBizOpps.  
31.  Reference:  DISANet Configuration Board Guidelines, Page 7 of 10, Section 3.1.3- DISANet Database Update.  “Updates to the DISANet Asset Management Database (DISANet AMD)…”

Questions: What application is currently being used as the DISANet AMD?  Is the DISANet AMD integrated with any other systems or is the update process a manual process. If the process is manual, what is that process?

See Question #29.
32.  Reference:  Attachment J13, DISANet Asset Management Plan, Page 3 of 11, Section 2.2- Item 5.  “Software inventory records and reports shall be available in accordance with Altiris permissions”

Questions: What are these Altiris permissions?   If the Altiris permissions refers to Table 1 (page 5 of 11), are these fields searchable fields modifiable?

The “permissions” are the access permissions granted to individuals for viewing the data in question.
33.  Reference: Attachment J10, DEMI and DISANet Notice Process. 

 Questions:  What is the time frame between the user creation of an SCR in DEMI and the completion of the technical staff review?   What is the Configuration Management staff review time frame / process?   What is the change notification time frame currently, prior to changes?

To clarify, the SCR (System Change Request) is the internal change request that takes place after Requirements Board processing, and not the user request.  At present, the goal is for the Configuration Management staff is to take an initial action within 5 business days on user requests.  This comprises determining if the request is for a “standard” action (such as adding a new user account), in which case a streamlined  process take place, or any other request,  in which case the request is forwarded to the Requirements Board.   At the time a DTSN or DRN is published, the product is ready for deployment.  The DTSN/DRN must be published no later than 48 hours before deployment, it is fairly common for them to be released five business days before product deployment.  
34.  Reference:  M.2.3 Past Performance color ratings.

Comment:  The requirements seem overly complex and cannot account for all possible combinations. This could result in unintended unbalances in the evaluation. For example, under the current wording a combination of five citations that includes two low rated submissions could be blue. There are a total of 80 possible combinations (5 past performance citations x 4 relevancy ratings x 4 performance quality ratings) must be accounted for. We recommend that the criteria in the first three columns be used for Past performance as well to eliminate potential acquisition risk post award.

The color coding system and past performance methodology have been reviewed and approved by the appropriate legal and contract offices.  The evaluation guidelines provided to the Government evaluators take into account that not all possible combinations have been directly addressed.  

35.  Reference:  Sections L and M.  

Section L allows for the use of Past Performance from a critical partner.  Accordingly, recommend that M2.3, Blue, Past Performance column, item b. be changed to read: “b. A majority of the excellent-rated efforts identified in item a. above are performed by the Offeror or critical partner as a prime, and at least one must be highly a relevant PBA effort.” 

36.  Reference:  Sections L and M.  

Section L states that the Government will evaluate past performance by the Offeror or a critical partner. In many places Section M only addresses the Offeror. For example M.3.3.3 begins, "The Government establishes the recency of the Offeror's Past Performance...". In Section M for Past Performance, when it is used generically and not differentiated from subcontractors, does the term "Offeror" include critical partners?
Yes, in this context, the term “Offeror” includes critical partners.
37.  M.3.2.2 Subfactor 2 – Services Provisioning Management, Element 2 - Staffing Approach  indicates that the Offeror must submit a Compensation Plan for Employees.  Does this count towards the page limitation set forth in L.6.2.2?

Yes, this will count against the page limit.  The Employees Compensation Plan should highlight the Offeror’s basic benefits package that it will use to recruit, hire, retain and replace employees with the appropriate qualifications and skill sets, appropriate security clearances, and professional IT certifications, as stated in M.3.2.2.  The Compensation Plans for critical partners must also be submitted.

38.  In Attachment J.17, Item 15, both “Yes” and “No” are checked.  Please clarify.

This item should have been checked “No” only, and will be corrected.
39.  Is it acceptable to send a compensation plan that is specifically germane to this RFP rather than company-wide?
Yes, this is acceptable.  See Question #37 for further details.
40.  CORENet Phase 1-Draft RFP-Questions and Answers

Q&A was released based on the Draft RFP. Are the answers in the Q&A document considered official response now that the final RFP has been released?

The Final RFP supercedes the Draft RFP and any inconsistencies with the Draft RFP Q&A document.
41.  CORENet Phase 1-Draft RFP-Questions and Answers 

“Question & Answer #82   Question--RFP E, Technical objectives, Network Monitoring. If DISC would like an improved network monitoring system is an existing GFE solution acceptable. Answer—Yes, it could be acceptable. Enhancement of the network monitoring capabilities would follow the technology insertion process.”

Please further explain “could be acceptable”. Under what conditions would it be or not be acceptable? Must a proposed solution be an existing GFE solution to be acceptable?

The proposed solution does not have to be an existing GFE solution; in fact “use of a GFE solution” could be problematic, depending on what is meant by that phrase.  Use of, or integration with, a network monitoring solution hosted on another DISA or DoD network, which would not be under the control of the DISC, for local monitoring of the CORENet is most likely not possible.  Deploying an existing GFE COTS/GOTS solution directly on the CORENet as an enhancement or improvement to the existing CORENet network management/monitoring infrastructure could be possible. 
42.
CORENet Phase 1-Draft RFP-Questions and Answer

Q&A #80—Answer DISA DECCs, managed by the DISA Computer Services Directorate are not part of the CORENet.

Is it DISA’s intention that the DISA DECCs will not be part of CORENet throughout the life of the contract?

A distinction must be made between the CSD administrative network supporting CSD facilities and users, and the CSD DECCs, which provide a range of data center-based IT services to outside customers.  The DECCs, as data centers, will remain outside the purview of CORENet.  In fact, it is possible that some CORENet servers (i.e., e-mail, application servers) could migrate from CORENet LANs to the DECCs and be hosted by CSD as a fee-for-service.

It is DISA’s intent to merge the CSD administrative network with the CORENet at an as-yet unspecified time in the future.  There is some possibility that this merger could take place within the period of performance of the CORENet Phase I contract.  An addition of this scope to the contract would be negotiated separately. 
43.  What are DISA's plans with regards to rolling up the DISA Enterprise Computing Centers' Admin network into DISA CoreNet?

See Question #42.
44.  CORENet Phase 1 Scope and Concept of Operations- In the quadrant for release management, what is comprised in “release management” (GOTS, COTS, software, patches, etc.)?

 Any change to the baseline configuration of the IT infrastructure will be undertaken through the release management process.  That includes the above, and “systems” changes such as firewall rules changes, switch VLAN configuration changes, etc.  However, some systems change will follow a change and release management process different than the “standard” process.
45.  Section L.1.6 - Based on the staffing model and service desk, we need to know if the call center is required to be staffed 24/7 or is it “on call” and if on call, can it be accomplished with remote support during after hours?  Also, what are the response time requirements for after-hours support?

46.  Section L.1.6 – DISA non-standard approved references Remedy and Section L.1.6 references Cisco Call Center Express.  Please clarify whether Remedy and/or Cisco Call Center Express is the preferred software for the Call Center?

Both tools are deployed for user support.  Cisco Unified Contact Center Express (the correct name – all documentation shall be amended to reflect this) provides contact center/call management services; Remedy is the underlying application for the trouble ticket system.

47.  L.2.3 - How does the Government view meeting and granting award fees for SLAs in a shared Government/Vendor environment?

The term “shared environment” is misleading and will be deleted or modified where it occurs in the RFP.  Many MOF Service Management Functions will be “shared” between the Government and contractor; however, there should be very few instances of the sub-functions and processes that make up the SMFs being shared between the Government and the contractor.  The Government would not expect Service Level Agreements and metrics to be directed towards any such shared processes.  When contractor ability to meet SLA metrics and acceptable level of quality requirements for a process or function can be affected by Government actions it has no control over, then the contractor should propose an Operating Level Agreement that will document Government responsibilities for this interaction.  If the Government failure to meet its responsibilities affects contractor performance, this will then be taken into account when applying incentives or disincentives.

48.  L.2.3 - Does DISANet II currently have SLAs and if so, could you please provide the service definitions and other SLA data? 

The present DISANet support contract is a Time-and-Materials based contract that does not use SLAs.  All contractor support is provided on a best-effort basis.
49.  L.2.3 - Does DISA currently have SLAs with the customer community DISA supports?  If so, could you please provide the SLAs? Such as flag officer SLAs?

The DISC does not have SLAs in place with the customer community at this time.  The DISC is developing a Field Site CORENet Administration SOP, and may develop SLAs for Field Site support.
50.  L.7 Oral Presentation - When are the oral presentations scheduled to be held?

Presentations will be scheduled after proposal due date; Offerors will be provided sufficient time to prepare for the presentation.
51.  M.3.2.1 – Subfactor 1 – Element 1 - It states that “the Government recognizes that it is ultimately its responsibility to finalize the QASP, even though the Offeror is requested to provide one.”  Earlier in the same section it states “The Offeror shall submit a QAP and QASP proposal that identify adequate processes for…”   Could you clarify if this is a requirement or a request for the QASP?  

The Government is requiring that the Offeror submit a QASP.  M.3.2.1 will be amended to reflect this.
52.  M.3.2.1 – Subfactor 1 - Element 6 – “The Offeror must propose a hardware and software procurement plan via the contract that will provide for adequate competition, incorporate strategic sourcing concepts, is in accordance with FAR provisions, and provides best value to the Government.”  Is this required to be submitted at the time of proposal?  If so, what does DISA require to be included in the Hardware and Software Procurement Plan?  What is the expected dollar volume to be run through the Hardware and Software procurements via this plan?   

Yes, this is required to be submitted at time of proposal.  The procurement plan identified in M.3.2.1 is the Equipment Purchase Request (EPR) identified in L.2.3.  The RFP will be amended to reflect this.  The contents of the EPR are at the discretion of the Offeror; however, the Government will evaluate the EPR in accordance with M.3.2.1.  The dollar volume cannot be determined at this time.

53.  M.3.2.2 - Subfactor 2 - Re: “The offeror must include a Compensation Plan for Employees in its proposal”.  If proposing a multi-company team, what compensation plans are required from the team members other than the prime contractor?

The Offeror must submit the compensation plans for critical partners.  See Question #37.

54.  M.3.2.2 - Subfactor 2 – Element 3 Technology Insertion.

Please provide the Government budgeting, cost control and cost visibility requirements required for inclusion in the Technology Insertion Plan.

The technology insertion plan must identify opportunities based on business drivers and organizational benefits.  It must also recognize the Government’s budgeting process, the Government’s need to maintain cost control, and also have adequate visibility into the cost expenditure process.  The RFP will be amended to reflect this.

55.  M.3.2.3 - Transition Planning: What is the commitment of the incumbent (from a contractual standpoint) during the transition period?

If all options of the current contract are exercised, the incumbent's period of performance would extend through June 3, 2009.

56.  Attachment J.3 – DISANet System Management Tools Tab - Will we be responsible for the finalization of partially implemented tools?  If so, are test plans available to review at this time?  

Some partially implemented tools will be fully deployed before award contract.  The Government will update this document to reflect this.  For the rest, the contractor would be responsible for carrying out remaining testing, integration, change management and release management tasks.  Existing test plans for tools that will probably still be undergoing deployment after contract award will be made available if they are publicly releasable.
57.  Attachment J.3 - DISANet System Management Tools Tab - For tools that have not been implemented, is there a timeline for implementation available?

The attachment will be updated with available timelines.
58.  Attachment J.3 - DISANet System Management Tools Tab - Could we get the functional requirements for the tools?

The attachment will be updated with available functional requirements documentation.
59.  Attachment J.7 - DISANet Work Breakout Tab – Column “DRSN” – What are the clearance requirements for Telecommunications contractor staff working on Defense Red Switch Network (DRSN) as specified in the spreadsheet tab?  Based on our research, the clearance level of the network is higher than specified in the RFP.  Please clarify.

A Top Secret/ Sensitive Compartmented Information (SCI) clearance will be required.  This requirement has been identified in Section C of the RFP, item D.2.1.3 in the CORENet Statement of Objectives.
60.  Attachment J.7 - DISANet Work Breakout Tab – Column “Contractors”  - There  are call center staff listed as “Part Time”.  What is the expectation for the remaining time ?

Additional information will be provided in Attachment J.6, “DISC Org Chart”, on the present employment of partial FTEs and after-hours billets.  

Due to Government concerns with the relevancy and accuracy of the data concerning the integration and implementation tasks, the DISANet Work Breakout and Contractor Actions worksheets are being deleted, and Attachment J.7 will be renamed to more accurately reflect its content.

61.  Attachment J.7 - DISANet Work Breakout Tab – Column  “Contractors” - Is the last Contractor position listed on the Watch Team part time ?  The spreadsheet indicates 20%, but there is no PT in the Part Time Column.

N/A - Due to Government concerns with the relevancy and accuracy of the data concerning the integration and implementation tasks, the DISANet Work Breakout and Contractor Actions worksheets are being deleted, and Attachment J.7 will be renamed to more accurately reflect its content.

62.  Attachment J.7 - DISANet Work Breakout Tab – What are the current labor categories for the various contractor positions listed in J.7 ? 

N/A - Due to Government concerns with the relevancy and accuracy of the data concerning the integration and implementation tasks, the DISANet Work Breakout and Contractor Actions worksheets are being deleted, and Attachment J.7 will be renamed to more accurately reflect its content.

63.  Attachment J.7 - Staffing Profile - Is the staffing profile provided the current bridge contract LOE or is it the LOE that the Government expects us to provide?

It is most important to note that this is the current bridge contract LOE.  All documentation of staffing levels and organizational structure is for the current DISANet infrastructure, and is not to be interpreted as an expectation for future organization or staffing levels.
64.  How many companies made the discretionary down-select?

As stated in the Draft RFP Q&A, "this acquisition is being competed using the Advisory multi-step process in accordance with FAR 15.202.  Respondents to the Pre-Solicitation notice were advised by the Government in writing either that they will be invited to participate in the resultant acquisition or, based on the information submitted, that they are unlikely to be a viable competitor.  This is advisory in nature and does not preclude any contractor from submitting a proposal in response to the RFP."  No down-select was performed, and the Government will not release the number of companies that were deemed viable.

65.  Is there a DISA reading room where we can review pertinent documents regarding this solicitation?

No.

66.  What are DISA's plans with regards to rolling up the DECCs admin network into DISA CoreNet?

See Question #42.
67.  With the definite scenario that all offerers will propose different labor categories, and also categories’ naming conventions with potentially same labor description and functions, how would the Govt compare the pricing and provide weighed score for the evaluation?  Would that be purely subjective without some form of a scoring factor basis (since the comparison would be based on an “apples to oranges” comparison type scenario)?

The evaluation will be performed in accordance with the guidance in Section M.
68.  Since the offerer is required to submit only for the 4 SMF areas and not the total 21 SMF areas as laid out by the RFP, Will the Govt expect and require the winning offerer to execute within the ceiling amount based on the offerer’s proposed pricing for the 4 specified SMF areas (as dictated in Section L), but yet deliver the complete effort on all 21 SMF areas.  The bidding price (based on the Government’s current directions) would be severely under the projected actual contract amount (which will not be bid or made available to the Government since the Government is not requesting for this submission)?
The Offeror must provide a total CORENet services price as indicated in Section B, including the labor categories, descriptions, hours and rates.  Section L will be amended to reflect this requirement.  This is in addition to pricing the SMFs specified in Section L.4, which will be used as a sampling for the cost/price evaluation.  
70.  Reference page 80, Element 2 – Staffing Approach.  “…The offeror must include a Compensation Plan for Employees in its proposal.”

Q.  Does the Gov’t want to see an Offeror’s entire Compensation Plan, or just a highlight of what’s in their plan?   Within the constraints of the page count allocated to the Management plan (25 pages) it would be difficult to include a Compensation Plan unless it does not count against the page count. 

See Question #37. 

71.  Reference SOO, page 15, Item C. 4, and SOO, page 15, Item D.6: “Implement a cost control reporting system that integrates the Integrated Master Plan/Integrated Master Schedule (IMP/IMS) and provides Earned Value (EV) analysis and management for all CLINs. (C. 4); and “…Develop, maintain, and use an Integrated Master Schedule to manage…” (D.6).  

Q. Will an Integrated Master Plan be provided by the Govt. for offerors to revise or is it a part of an awardee’s startup task to develop it upon contract award?  Per SOO D.6 reference above, the offerors are responsible for developing and maintaining the Integrated Master Schedule but there is no other mention of Integrated Master Plan.

The awardee will develop an IMP upon contract award.

72.  Page 64, L3.1, (i) - Past Performance Data. The Government asks offerors to complete the past performance data. What past performance “data” is the Government looking for? Is it the Acquisition information that is required in attachment J.24? 

The past performance data consists of attachment J.24 and accompanying narrative that addresses the relevance of the past performance to SOO objectives, and the ability of the contractor to conform to the requirements during performance of the previous contracting effort.   Section L3.1 will be amended to clarify the past performance data requirements and page limits.  
73.  How many hours of overtime were used in the previous DISANet Program? Within what labor category were these overtime hours expended? 

The Government does not have this exact information.  Excess hours were expended either as overtime or compensatory time, and the government did not track this; the contractor policy was to minimize the use of overtime. 
74.  Do Subcontractors have to submit cost information to the Government or DCAA? 

The Prime has to submit a complete cost proposal, to include subcontractor costs, to the Government and DCAA.
75.  Are there any help desk scripts or standard operating procedures utilized by the previous contractor available? If so, can the Government please provide these? 

Selected relevant additional SOPs will be made available to the Offerors.

76.  As part of our supporting documentation for the Performance Requirements Summary within the Performance Work Statement, we would like to provide sample templates that support our processes. Could these be provided in an appendix that did not factor into the page limit? 

No, this information cannot be provided in an appendix and will be counted against the page limit.  The page limits of this section will be reviewed for possible amendment to allow for such ancillary information.
77.  What is the current function of the Account Team?

The DO522B Accounts Team creates all DISANet accounts, establishes mailboxes for Exchange 2000 and creates and maintains group directories and permissions for the NCR.  Manages and maintains the Voice Over IP (VOIP) user database and assigns IP’s and server names as part of its DNS management function. 

78.  Reference: L.2.3 Performance and Quality

Questions: Given the page limitation in the Volume II – Factor 2, Management Approach and the amount of detailed information normally found in a QAP and QASP, our assumption that these two documents are to be attached to the PWS as Appendices to the PWS and not part of the 25 page limitation of Volume II, Management Approach?  Is this a correct assumption?

The first five sections of the QAP and the QASP will count towards the PWS page limit (but not against the Volume II page limit).  Section 6 of the QAP will contain a variable number of subsections equivalent to the number of submitted SLAs, and will be submitted as an Appendix to the PWS, as are the SLAs and OLAs, and not count towards any page limit.  The QAP template will be restructured and the page limitation in L.6.2.2 will be amended to clarify this requirement. 
79.  Reference: L.2.4 Service Provisioning Management—Staffing Approach

Question: Given the page restriction of Volume II (25 pages less 8 pages for Phase-in) and the potential number of skill sets required to support CORENet, we assume that the required job descriptions are to be included as an Appendix to the Volume and will be outside of the page count.. Is this a correct assumption?
The guidance will be amended to direct that the job descriptions will be included in Volume IV – Cost/Price rather than Volume II - Management Approach, and that there is no page limit on Volume II.

80.  Reference: M.3.2.2 Subfactor 2--Service Provisioning Management—Element 2 Staffing Approach: “The Offeror must include a Compensation Plan for Employees in its proposal.

Question: Is this to be an Appendix to the Volume II, as most company Compensation Plans are lengthy in nature?  

See Question #37.
81.  Reference: Section B and Section L.4.1 

Question: There appears to be confusion as to what the offerors should price. Section B indicates we should provide one fixed price per year, while Section L.4.1 indicates we are to provide fixed pricing for only four SMFs—Service Monitoring, Service Desk, Release Management and Network Administration. Please clarify.

Refer to Question #68 regarding Section L.4.1 guidance.  The reference to “Program Management, Configuration Management, Engineering Support and Operations Support” in Section B will be dropped.

82.  Reference L.4.3 Travel: The Offerors shall provide travel costs, which the Offeror may be required to incur during the contract.  These travel costs will be calculated using the following Government estimates: six trips of one week each (three trips are anticipated in the CONUS and three trips are anticipated OCONUS) and the mark-up/profit percentages proposed by the Offeror.

Question: Given the full spectrum of variables associated in providing a reasonable cost estimate for the three CONUS and OCONUS trips, i.e. location, the number of employees traveling, the mode of travel and number of days while on travel, would the Government consider providing a plug number estimate for travel for all years?  If the answer is no, would the Government provide, for evaluation purposes only, the locations of the anticipated trips, number of personnel traveling, number of days on travel, mode of travel, etc.  This would provide a common base for evaluation of all offeror proposed travel costs.

The Government will provide more detailed travel estimates.
83.  Reference: Section L.4.2 Labor Rates & Categories; Is the Government expecting a Firm Fixed Price – level of effort type award?

Per the Draft RFP Q&A #43, "the Government anticipates the award of an IDIQ contract, using Fixed-Price Incentive and Cost Reimbursable type task orders."

84.  There appears to be some inconsistencies between the RFP guidance on Government/ Contractor sharing of responsibilities, the staffing profiles found in Attachment J.6 “DISC Organizational Chart”, and Attachment J.7 “Services and Workload Statistics”. For example, RFP Section C, Table 1: Government and Contractor Responsibilities, indicates that Service Monitoring and Control is a Contractor responsibility.  However, J6 and J7 (Tab “DISANet Work Breakout”) indicate a total of 13.5 positions for the Monitor/ Watch Team, with 5.8 of those position held by contractors. Please clarify. 

Attachments J.6 and J.7 reflect the existing staffing levels and organizational structures and are provided as a baseline reference.  Specific CORENet service functions and tasks are defined for the existing organizational structure, and also in terms of future government/contractor responsibilities, in Attachment J.5, “DISC Functions and Missions Statement”.    Thus, the responsibilities breakout is defined using two criteria, the first being the specific tasks identified in J.5, and the second being the processes and best practice tenets encapsulated in the Microsoft Service Management Functions, as detailed in the CORENet SOO and Attachment J.8, “CORENet SMF Responsibilities”.   Attachment J.8 is being amended for clarification and to provide more detailed information.    
85.  There appears to be some discrepancies between the DISANet system management tools listed in Attachment J.3 Software Inventory and those identified in other RFP sections/attachments. For example, Section L.1.6 states that the existing Call Center software suite includes Cisco IP Call Center Express, but that software is not listed in J.3. Similarly, Attachment J.1 Technical Architecture states that the Headquarters Help Desk uses Remedy for trouble ticketing, but Remedy is not listed in J.3. Please clarify whether J.3, especially in the system management tools area, is complete, and if not, what additional significant tools are being used or fall into the “Not Yet Implemented” category. 

Attachment J.3 will be updated to identify all system tools.

86.  There appears to be some inconsistencies in the identification of equipment currently being used within DISANet. For example: (a) Attachment J.1 Section 5.3 states that Sun servers are used for Domain Name Services (DNS), web, and database services; (b) The Large Site .BMP file shows many Sun servers, including those used for EDGE Policy Server and EDGE Directory Server; and (c) Attachment J.2 Hardware Inventory only shows a few Sun servers and they are all used for DNS. Please explain the apparent inconsistencies.

The only DISANet infrastructure SUN servers, that is, SUN servers providing DISANet services and managed by the DISC, are the DNS servers.  The other servers, such as the DISA web servers, are DISA mission servers that reside on DISANet backbone networks in DISA facilities, but are deployed and managed by DISA organizations other than the DISC.
87.  Attachments J.10, J.11, J.12, and J.14 provide four examples of existing Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs). Since existing SOPs are important for understanding the “As-Is” CORENet environment and the effort required to reach the “To-Be” environment needed to reach DISA’s CORENet objectives, will the Government provide copies of all the significant SOPs currently used to run the network.

The Government will provide any additional available SOPs as Attachments to the RFP.

88.  The titles of Section L.1.7 Network Monitoring and M.1.5 Subfactor 5 – Network Monitoring indicate these sections refer to just monitoring the network. However, the descriptions refer to systems instead of networks, and Section L.1.7 indicates the contractor network monitoring personnel will at times prevent or remedy potential or actual system failures. Please provide additional clarification of the work performed for this evaluation criterion, including whether it covers monitoring of all CORENet services and how closely this aligns with the Service Monitoring and Control SMF (per MOF and Attachment J.8 SMF Responsibilities.)  

This task encompasses monitoring of all CORENet services, as enabled through the capabilities of the system management tools identified in Attachment J.3, Software Inventory.  Missions and functions of the existing network operations center, DO522A - DISANet Control Center, which the contractor shall perform, are identified in Attachment J.5, DISC Functions and Missions Statement.  There is a requirement to perform system administration and Tier II support (basic direct prevention and remediation of system faults) after core business hours.  See Attachments J.5 and J.6 for more information on 24x7/after hours support requirements.
Of the six major processes defined in the Service Monitoring and Control SMF (Establish, Assess, Engage Software Development, Implement, Monitor and Control) this requirement deals mainly with the monitoring process, and, to a lesser extent, with control.  This is the case with control since, at this time, development of a detailed control process activity and automated controls is in a nascent stage.
89.  In Attachment J.8 several SMFs list the same responsibilities for both Government and Contractor. These shared responsibilities make it difficult to determine the division of work in these areas and therefore difficult to write appropriate SLAs/OLAs and to determine a fixed price for the effort. Please clarify how we should use J.8 in developing SLAs, OLAs, and pricing. 

Attachment J.8 will be amended to clarify and provide more detail on the responsibilities breakout.  It is the Government’s descriptions of what it believes are main/critical processes and roles within the SMFs.  It is being expanded and clarified, but it is not intended to fully represent the scope of work, and the Government intends that it play a partial role in developing SLAs, OLAs, and pricing.   
It is the intent of the government that Attachment J.5, “DISC Functions and Missions Statement”, also identify contractor duties.  It is being reviewed and modified, to include classifying the tasks as contractor or government, to ensure it is accurate and detailed enough for this purpose.  J.5 is a task-centric view of the contractor functions, the SMFs and J-8 are a process-centric view of these functions.

The Microsoft MOF SMFs represent an ideal end state, and not all tenets, sub –processes and support activities would be followed or implemented.   Attachment J.8 is a listing of what the Government has identified as critical processes, but it is expecting the Offeror to determine what is practicable and cost-effective in defining the scope of work.  
90.  In Attachment J.8, some of the responsibilities associated with certain SMFs do not appear to be consistent with MOF; e.g. “design, deploy self-service facilities” within the Incident Management SMF. Please clarify how we should use J.8 in developing SLAs, OLAs, and pricing.  

See Question #89.  For the item in question, RightAnswer’s Knowledgebase has been deployed on the CORENet to provide an initial level of user self-service capabilities.
91.  How does the Government plan to order services on this contract? Section B indicates the Government is going to order a complete set of services on a yearly basis. However, Section L.4.1 indicates the Government is going to order services on a SMF by SMF basis. Please clarify.

The Government does not intend to issue task orders corresponding to SMF's.  Rather, one task order will be issued to include all CORENet services, in accordance with Section B.

92.  If the Government orders services on a SMF basis, offerors would not be able to develop meaningful SLAs that address IT functions that are common to multiple SMFs, because they would not know which SMFs they are responsible for. However, Section L.2.3 states that offerors may propose SLAs that cross SMF boundaries. Please clarify.

N/A

93.  Reference l.7 Oral Presentation: Please provide the process by which offeror will be randomly selected and notified of their selection (within 3 days after proposal submission or upon completion of the review process).  Also, for planning purposes, when does the Government anticipate commencing oral presentations with the offerors. 

See Question #50.

94.  RFP it states that "The reference model that was chosen was the Microsoft Operations Framework (MOF) process model (see Figure 1).   The MOF is based on, and expands upon, the Information Technology Infrastructure Library (ITIL)".  We assume that the ITIL processes implemented for this effort will follow MOF.  Is the contractor expected to implement MOF processes?  Additionally, can the contractor propose an ITIL implementation framework different than MOF?

Per the CORENet SOO Performance Improvement Objective (item II.D.4), the contractor is to “Improve efficiency, effectiveness, security, and customer support through the phased adoption of industry best practices (e.g., Information Technology Infrastructure Library (ITIL)…”
The contractor will be required to implement MOF capability, as follows:

The Government will shortly be performing a MOF operations assessment of the DISANet IT environment, and is planning on implementing the following critical MOF SMFs:  Change, Release, Configuration, Incident, Problem and Service Level Management.   These SMFs encompass numerous and major functions and processes that will be the responsibility of the contractor.   A deployment plan and schedule have yet to be developed, and at this time it can be stated only that SMF deployment will be underway, but only partially completed, by the commencement of the CORENet task.  The contractor will thus have an active role in the implementation of these SMFs, and will have a be able to provide contractor input and recommendations on the deployment strategy and objectives are expected and will be reviewed for possible acceptance.
Implementation of remaining SMFs is presently beyond the scope of this project, and the contractor will be provided the flexibility to develop a strategy for implementation of other SMFs, or even of another ITIL framework for these other functions and processes.  The only requirement is that the contractor must implement an ITIL framework best suited to meet the SOO objectives. 
95.  Can the Government provide a breakdown of current contractor staff by labor category?  Can the Government provide a Level of Effort estimate for the SMF areas that will be shared responsibility?  Our problem is with the contract being a firm fixed price it's difficult to define our responsibility under the shared areas.
The Government will provide a breakdown of current contractor staff by labor category.  The Government’s intent is to minimize any shared responsibilities, and will modify Attachment J.8 to identify SMF responsibilities in greater detail. 
96.  With the primary work to be done in the NCR, how will all currently supported sites outside the NCR be affected?

Program management, configuration management, and change and release management (design, testing, planning documentation and major deployment actions) support for the enterprise DISANet is centralized and provided by the DISC.  Operations and system administration support is decentralized and is provided by the DISC at locations in the National Capital Region (NCR) and is provided by field site personnel at locations outside the NCR.  Field site operations responsibilities are managed via service level agreements with the DISC (see Attachment J.15, “Field Site Administration SOP”).  This structure will remain in place for the CORENet Phase I contract. 

97.  With the level of detail required to satisfactorily respond to the solicitation we believe once the answers are released with the current due date of May 5the there will not be enough time to review the answers and incorporate the new information.

The current due date of May 5th will be extended.  The RFP amendment indicating the extension will be issued on May 1st.  
98.  Section C Part B CORENet Acquisition Strategy, page 10, says the Government wants to avoid mixed teaming agreements but the Mod Quad provided shows a mixed team environment which conflicts with your statement in the above quoted section on page 10.  Can the Government define which are the contract tasks be performed by the contractor for us so we can deliver meaningful SLAs?

Attachments J.5 and J.8 provide the required information on contract tasks.

Attachment J.5 identifies existing DISANet support functions and tasks, and is being amended to clearly identify whether they will be government or contractor responsibilities under CORENet.  

Attachment J.8 identifies the government/contractor responsibilities for the major internal processes within SMFs, it is being amended for clarification and to provide more detailed information.  Microsoft MOF Service Management Functions lay out a desired end state and identify tactical and strategic processes, tenets, best practices and roles to meet this end state; in most of the SMFs, some processes will be the responsibility of the government and some will be the responsibility of the contractor.  For example, upgrading network components, a contractor task (as performed through change management and release management processes) and maintaining network components, a government task, both fall within the purview of the Network Administration SMF.  Processes are not shared (or shared as little as possible), but the SMF is a “shared” SMF.  

99.  After winning the CORENet contract, will there be an Organizational Conflict of Interest (OCI) issue with the prime and subcontractors not able to bid on future DISA contracts?  If so which opportunities? 

We have not identified any conflicts of interest at this time, but an OCI issue could arise during the performance of the contract.  Clause 52.209-9000, located in Section I of the RFP, addresses OCI.

100.  With only a four week response deadline can DISA have the PowerPoint oral presentation due two weeks after the CORENet solicitation response? 

No, slides to be used for the oral presentation are due on the proposal due date.  See also answer #11.
101.  DISA previously stated in the Draft RFP Questions and Answers there are approximately 94 Government and 99 Anvicom contractor personnel supporting DISANet.  In Section J7 Services and Workload Statistics, DISANet Work Breakout, the number of contractor FTEs adds up to approximately 100.  However, J5, “DISC Organizations Functions and Missions” describes and the J7 matrix shows a total of 5 FTEs within the DO521A Telecommunications Management Team performing a mix of legacy telephone, VTC and DRSN management functions.  The CORENet Architecture only addresses voice telecommunications services.  Please clarify if the additional functions will be performed under the CORENet Phase I contract.

The functions presently performed by the Telecommunications Management Team in DO521A are not performed under the present DISANet contract and will not be performed under the CORENet Phase I contract; Attachments J.5, J.6 and J.7 will be amended for clarification.  The Government personnel and contractor FTE count provided in Attachment J.6 should be considered the definitive total as of 21 April 2008.  It reflects three Government personnel on this team, but does not include the non-DISANet contractors.
102.  Under the CORENet Phase I Scope and Concept of Operations, the SOO states that Tier 1 and Tier 3 support functions are assigned to the contractor and Tier 2 support responsibilities are assigned to the Government.  Correspondingly the J7 Services and Workload Statistics, DISANet Work Breakout reflects a Tier 3 Trouble Ticket Support workload.  However there is no reference to Tier 3 responsibilities in the J5 document “DISC Functions and Mission Statements.” Please clarify.

The “DO523B - DISC Implementation Branch Mission and Functions” section in Attachment J.5 identifies “tier III technical support for all DISANet network devices” as a branch function.  The “DO523A - DISC Integration Branch Mission and Functions” identified “Tier 4 support for all DISANet servers, workstations, network infrastructure, and network management software” as a branch function.  This should be interpreted as Tier 3 support.
Also note that the DISANet Work Breakout worksheet is being deleted; it has been determined that the tasks identified do not accurately represent the integration and implementation functions.
103.  The latest version Note 1 for the SOO’s MOF Table 1 deleted reference to “contractor Tier 3 support as necessary.   However, contractor Tier 3 support is referred to in Note 1 of the Section J15 Draft Field Site (Field Office) Administration SOP SMF Matrix.  Will this note be changed in the final SOP?

Attachment J.15 shall be amended to be in accordance with the SOO. 

104.  What is the expected presence at each work location? 

All on-site contractor personnel will be based in the NCR.  At this point in time, it is foreseen that the great majority of the contractor personnel will be located at the two major facilities in the NCR, those being the Headquarters compound in Arlington, VA and Seven Skyline Place in Falls Church, VA.
105.  What are the current subcontract staffing numbers filling each functional area? 

There are no subcontractors on the present DISANet support contract.

106.  CM: need to clarify who buys what, and what the customer expects.  Under D. Management Objectives it states: 

7. Configuration Management.  Maintain an Enterprise Configuration Management (CM) solution in order to effectively manage, document and maintain configuration changes for distribution and use throughout the enterprise and domains.  Ensure the software application supporting the CM solution is industry-proven, open, non-proprietary and COTS-based. Provide guidance to and coordination with enterprise and domain supports staffs and Network Operations to ensure accurate and consistent use of the CM solution.

The Offeror will assess the existing and planned Configuration Management tools and processes.  Per L.2.4, the Offeror will demonstrate a sound approach for implementing Configuration Management on the system; recommending changes or additions to or replacement of the Government’s existing and planned tools and processes, it determines are  necessary to ensure a sound CM process will be put into place.  
If approved by the Government, the Offeror’s proposed solutions would be deployed through process-change and technology insertion procedures; the Government would be responsible for funding of additional hardware and software.

 Element #5 in M.3.2.2 will be amended to more clearly reflect the above.
107.  Will Government provide all Configuration Management (CM) materials, hardware and/or software, necessary to facilitate contractor support of the CORENet CM solution and objectives?  If not, what materials will Offeror/contractor be expected to provide?

The Government will provide all Configuration Management (CM) materials, hardware and/or software necessary to facilitate contractor support of the CORENet CM solution and objectives.
108.  Will DISA provide further clarification around Monitor as outlined in Item J.8 in contractor responsibilities? Is DISA intention to provide day-to-day monitoring and have the contractor provide Tier III support? (We define Tier III support with overall monitoring of health of the environment, provide Capacity Management/Planning, Incident/Problem management)

See Question #88 for a discussion of monitoring responsibilities and the Service Monitoring and Control SMF, and Attachments J.3, J.5 and J.8 for identification of Government and contractor monitoring tasks, responsibilities and tools.  It is the Government’s intent that “day-to-day monitoring” duties, which it is interpreting to mean monitoring of specific systems, will be carried out by both contractor and Government staff, the former manning the Network Operations/Monitoring Center and using the monitoring tools identified in J.3, and the latter in performing the day-to-day hands-on maintenance of the baseline configuration of the network infrastructure.
The Government has determined that Capacity Management/Planning and Incident/Problem Management are strategic functions that will be shared by the Government and contractor.  For example, both problem investigation and incident resolution can take place at the Tier I (Call Center/Help Desk – contractor function), Tier II (initial “hands-on” system support by system administrators – government function), or Tier III (engineering, design, integration and deployment resources – contractor function) levels.  See Attachment J.8 for a breakdown of Government and contractor responsibilities within each SMF. 
 109.  Is the contractor required to provide on-site support to all locations when required, including support for incident/problem management?

The contractor is required to provide on-site support to all locations when required.  Within the NCR, contractor personnel will be required to perform local travel in support of all contractor tasks, and to attend meetings and briefings.  It is intended that the contractor will provide on-site support to non-NCR DISA sites mainly in support of major system deployment actions, as part of the release management process.  See Section L.4.3 of the RFP.
110.  Items outlined in Figure 1 and Table 1 were not identified in attachment j.8. These items are Financial Management, workforce management, Service Level Management. Will DISA please provide clarification as to its intent to include these in the MOF process implementation and how the contractor should address in RFP response?

The Government will provide clarification regarding these three SMFs. 

111.  SOO, Section C, paragraph 3: Further clarify and describe any requirement for the contractor to do Lifecycle Cost Analysis and Cost as an Independent Variable (CAIV) analysis throughout the life of the contract.

As stated in the SOO, the Government is interested in ensuring that there is a balance between the total cost (to include acquisition costs, sustainment or maintenance costs, etc) to the Government and performance.  For example, it would be expected that Technology insertion efforts would be analyzed from both a performance, cost and schedule basis which recognizes the fiscal realities that exist in the Government.  It would not be expected to be a full CAIV process, as envisioned by the DODD 5000 documentation, but the offerors are expected to perform this contract and not ignore the fiscal realities.  The approach the offeror uses to address these objectives is up to the offeror.
112.  SOO, Section C, paragraph 4:  Is it the Governments intent to own the cost control reporting system specified in this paragraph?

It is not the intent of the Government to own this system. 

113.  SOO, Section C, paragraph 4:  Further clarify this requirement regarding the Government’s intent and any requirement to conduct earned value analysis in order to manage the CLINs on the resulting contract/task orders.

There will not be any requirement to conduct EVA, and the reference to this will be deleted from the SOO.

114.  How many contractors are expected to support DISA’s DevelopNet?

As presently planned, it is not expected that DevelopNet support will required dedicated or additional CORENet contractor resources.  The DISA Test and Evaluation Management Center (TEMC) will be responsible for deploying and managing the DevelopNet infrastructure, domains and services.   TEMC or end user organizations will be responsible for the accreditation and maintenance of the DevelopNet client systems.  DevelopNet client systems will reside on CORENet LANs, and the DISC will be responsible for providing IP space and the secure connectivity of these clients to the DevelopNet domains through the use of VLANs and IPSEC VPNs.  The provision and maintenance of this capability is not expected to require additional resources.
 115.  In SOO Section F; paragraph 6, DISA identifies the impending implementation of DevelopNet.  In Section E, paragraph 1, DISA identifies the requirement to manage the Enterprise Test Environment.  Please further clarify the purpose and differences of these two environments/networks.
DevelopNet refers to an operational network domain supporting operational test and development systems.  DevelopNet client PCs will be located at multiple CORENet sites.  The Enterprise Test Environment is an off-line network (with an independent WAN/Internet connection) for the testing and evaluation of new systems and the configuration and staging of hardware to be deployed upon the operational network.  At this time, the Enterprise Test Environment is located at the DISA Seven Skyline Place facility in Falls Church, VA.
116.  RFP Section L, Paragraph L.7 What is the Government’s anticipated schedule/general timeline for conducting the proposed oral presentations?

See Question #50.
117.  Please clarify the discrepancies that exist between the CORENet Microsoft Operations Framework Service Management Functions Breakout Table in Attachment J8, SOO Table 1: Government and Contractor Responsibilities, and SOO Figure 1: Microsoft Operations Framework.  For example, Service Level Management resides in the Optimizing quadrant of Figure 1 in the SOO, yet is not listed in the MOF SMF Breakout Table in Attachment J8.  Financial Management and Job Scheduling also require clarification.

118.  Does DISA expect that Phase 2 will occur during this period of performance and, if so, how will the Government incorporate the changes required to move from partially-managed to fully-managed service?

Per the Draft RFP Q&A #30, "Phase 2 activities will not be executed as part of this contract.  Because the scope and nature of Phase 2 requirements have not been determined, and may change greatly from those of Phase 1, we cannot identify the nature of the acquisition at this time."
119.  In Section L.2.3 of the RFP, DISA states that, “…the Government expects that not all SMFs can be directly addressed by SLAs, such as certain SMFs in the MOF Optimizing Quadrant….”  Please specify which of those SMFs that the Government does not require proposed SLAs.

The Government does not have definitive requirements concerning the application of SLAs and performance metrics to SMFs or Offeror-defined functions.  The Offeror can use SMFs or other functional descriptions to define the services identified in Section 3 of the PWS (see Attachment J.20).  The Government only requires that the Offeror provide a justification for not managing a function through an SLA.        

120.  In reference to Section L.3.1, does the Government require the offeror present each past performance citations separately with an introduction, past performance data, overview of the statement of work, and conformance to previous contract specifications? Or does the Government require the contractor present all 5 past performance data forms in a single section, and then all 5 overviews of the statement of work in the next section, and so on?

The Offeror shall present each past performance citation as a separate document.
121.  Section M 3.2.2 states that the offeror must have achieved certification at the regional level from an independent rating activity and list ITIL as one of those certifications.  Organizations are not certified by ITIL.  We request that you clarify this statement such that organizations must possess employees who are ITIL certified.

Section M.3.2.2 will be amended to reflect the correct means of ITIL certification.
122.  Section M 3.2.2 lists relevant certifications as (at least one of) ITIL, ITSM or Carnegie Mellon Level III as must have, with 4 others as “exceed”  Section L 2.4.   Section L 2.4 appears to require only certification in any one of the seven areas.  Please clarify.

Section L. 2.4 and M.3.2.2 are being be amended to provide more relevant certification requirements, which will also address this issue.
123.  Section L.2.4 list certifications including CMMI, however CMMI is primarily focused on software development.  Will software development be required during this contract?  If so what type and how much?  Otherwise, how is CMMI related to this effort?

Software development would consist of limited batch file development and maintenance, such as network log-on scripts for Windows PCs.  CMMI certification may not be particularly relevant, and Section M.3.2.2 will be amended to reflect this.

124.  The amount of information required in Volume II is considerable.  Would the Government consider increasing the page limit on this volume?

The page limit will remain as is.  See Questions #79 and 125 regarding exclusion of specific information from the page limit for Volume II.

125.  The PWS, SLA’s, OLA’s and incentive structure are limited to 45 pages.  Would the Government consider increasing the page limit on these items?

This page limit shall remain as is.  The SLAs and OLAs, and the QAPs addressing the individual SLAs/OLAs, do not count towards the PWS or volume page limits.
126.  Sections L and M differ in order in some areas. (for example, Services Provisioning Management Sections).  Does the Government wish the response to follow Section L or M?

The organization of the offeror's proposal in addressing this subfactor is up to the offeror.  However, the offeror's proposal should provide the information required in the Instructions to Offerors (Section L) in sufficient detail to ensure that the proposal can be evaluated utilizing the evaluation criteria in Section M.
127.  Is the Executive Summary included in the page limit for each volume?

Yes.

128.  Page 64, Volume III instructions calls for past performance data (part 1) in addition to Attachment J-24 information and parts 2 and 3.  To what data does this refer?

See Question #72.
129.  Attachment J-8 refers to SMC data. Can you elaborate on this? 

“SMC data” refers to the information created in the SMC requirements development phase.  

130.   Section H.7 states that contractors may “have access to certain sensitive information, including information provided on a proprietary basis by other contractors, equipment manufacturers and other private or public entities.”  In what capacity will this occur?  Will employees under this contract be required to work with source selection boards or evaluation teams?  This will carry OCI concerns.   Will the contracting officer entertain mitigation plans surrounding this requirement?

The Awardee might be required to have access to certain sensitive information, including information provided on a proprietary basis by other contractors, equipment manufacturers and other private or public entities to carry out its operational responsibilities.  However, no work with source selection teams is contemplated at this time.
131.   Section I lists FAR 52.222-41, Service Contracting Act.  Is the SCA applied to this?  Will you be publishing an applicable SCA determination?

FAR 52.222-41 does not apply to this acquisition, and will be deleted from the RFP.

132.  Section I lists 52.216-19 with several sections marked TBD.  When will these amounts be determined?
The minimum order will be set at $3,000.  Maximums will be determined at contract award, based on proposals received.
133.  The previously released questions and answers stated that an 8(a) whose 8(a) expires just after the due date will still be considered an 8(a) for purposes of making award.  Based on the new recertification rules, will that contractor still be considered an 8(a) at time of option exercise and mandatory recertification?

In accordance with 13 C.F.R. Section 124.514(b), "The procuring activity contracting officer may exercise a priced option to an 8(a) contract whether the concern that received the award has graduated or been terminated from the 8(a) BD program or is no longer eligible if to do so is in the best interests of the Government."
134.   Section I also lists FAR clause 252.225-7006    QUARTERLY REPORTING OF ACTUAL CONTRACT PERFORMANCE OUTSIDE THE UNITED STATES.  Will OCONUS work be required under this contract?

The capability to perform OCONUS work is required under this contract.

135.  The Government mentioned that a Regional Certification for ITIL, ITSM/ISO 9001/20000 be certified.  There are no regional certifications for ISO, ISO certifications are corporate based or organizational based.  Out of the 8 companies in your list of qualified contractors it appears only 2 are ISO Certified.    

a) Suggestion:  Since DISA is not ISO Certified (which would allow DISA to take full advantage of these specific certifications as a customer) may we suggest that disa change the requirement to ISO complaint.             

b) We also suggest that DISA request resumes from those ITIL, or ISO certified organizations/employees that will be provided and work on this contract.  It is one thing to have organizational certifications but unless you get employees that are helping you implement these certifications it won’t help the end-users. 

The Government will be amending the certifications and awards evaluation criteria to address several issues of accuracy and relevancy, and will take the above suggestions into consideration.
136.   DISA has mentioned SLA’s and OLA’s and indicated that DISA will provide Tier 2 support (Desk-side support) is that still the case?

Yes.
137.   Does DISA envision the winning contractor training the DISA Tier 2 users as to the New ITIL policies and procedures as this is a critical component of the Service Desk?

DISA expects the contractor to provide system documentation, system administrator guides and user guides when deploying system changes and new systems on the IT infrastructure or implementing process changes that affect system administrator or user functions.  DISA is not expecting the contractor to provide user training.
138.   Based on open source information, we learned that at the end of the last DISANet contract period in 2007, there were approximately 124 contractor FTEs on the contract. This is significantly different from the number cited in the modified answer to question # 53 in the CORENet Phase I – Draft RFP – Questions and Answers. Question # 53 also cites 94 Government personnel currently supporting the DISANet. Does the Government envision this number of 94 being significantly reduced for the CORENet contract?

The Government does not anticipate a reduction in the number of Government personnel providing CORENet services during the period of performance of this contract.

139.    If so, would there be a corresponding increase in the number of contract support personnel?

N/A
140.   When will the Oral Presentations take place?  Will they take place after submission of the RFP?

See Question #50.

141.   We have several questions based on attachment J8, CORENet Microsoft Operations Framework Service Management Functions Breakout:

SMF Category: Audit logs - would you describe which audit logs are maintained by Government and which are maintained by the Contractor

It is the intent that all audit, system and event logs will be maintained by government system administrators.  An automated back-up process using NetIQ Security Manager and supporting logs from the majority of IT devices on the network has been deployed on the network.

SMF Category: Problem Management - what authority does the contractor have to arbitrate a problem in comparison to a Government counterpart?

There is at present no defined arbitration process for problem management.  For the future CORENet task, when issues directly involve CORENet users/customers or vendors, the Government will most likely retain authority for the arbitration function.   Otherwise, both the government and the contractor will be authorized to arbitrate problems (the criteria for determining arbitration authority will need to be developed for the CORENet task).  However, DISC Senior Management (the DISC/DO52 Chief or Deputy) will be the final arbiter when necessary.
SMF Category: Release Management - can you please specify the scope of all major processes?

The vendors should reference Attachment J.5, “DISC Functions and Missions Statement”, which identifies contractor tasks,  Attachment J.8, which identifies responsibilities for the major processes of the SMFs, and any attached SOPs relating to release management to determine the scope of the planned implementation of this SMF.

SMF Categories: Availability Management and IT Service Continuity Management - can you please indicate the scope of the term "formalize OLAs"? Is the contractor supposed to formalize OLAs between the Government and Contractor or the Government and third-party vendors supplying availability support?

The contractor is to develop OLAs between the Government and Contractor, with the intent to identify Government responsibilities for Government-contractor interaction.  

SMF Category IT Service Continuity Management - can you please describe the scope of the local contingency solution?
At this point in time, there is no comprehensive “local contingency solution”.  Service level requirements have not been identified, a full risk assessment of the IT infrastructure has not been performed, and a complete, coherent local contingency solution has not been developed.  Numerous fail-over or fault tolerant capabilities have been deployed at different levels of the IT stack (redundancy of internal hardware components, failover for network backbone devices and communications links, data backup, etc.), but these can be viewed as addressing availability management requirements. 

142. Reference: Attachment J.8 (SMF Responsibilities); Storage Management, Government Responsibilities, the 5th bullet is “Subfactor 1 (2). 

Please clarify the Government’s responsibility. Is this with respect to SLAs (Factor 2, Subfactor 1, Element 1) and if so, what specifically is the Government’s role?

This is a typographical error, and will be deleted from the matrix.

143.  Reference: Attachment J.8 (SMF Responsibilities); Problem Management, Contractor Responsibilities, the 7th bullet is “Problem Arbitration”.

Please clarify by defining the term “Problem Arbitration” in this context and the Government and Contractor roles in the arbitration process.

Reference the Problem Management SMF for a definition of the Arbitration function.  See Question #141 for a discussion of this function within the CORENet task.

144.  Reference: Section L.1, Compliance/Cross Reference Matrix (page 56 of 85).

Please clarify the following:

(a)   The Factor, Subfactor and Element references for Program Management Objective/Project Management.

This item will be deleted from the Compliance/Cross Reference Matrix.  The Offeror is required to identify project and schedule management tools and processes per L.2.4, but there are no specific Section M evaluation criteria regarding this requirement.

 (b)   Should the last three Program Management Objective references in the table be Factor 2, Subfactor 3, Elements 1, 2, and 3 instead of Factor 1, Subfactor 3, Elements 1, 2, and 3?

 This is correct as written.
145.  Reference: Section L.2.3; PWS Template J.20 and Questions # 70 and 72 from the Draft RFP Q&A.

Answers to Questions # 70 and 72 stated that our response is to consist of one QAP and one QASP, however, the PWS Template requires an SMF by SMF response addressing the QAP and the QASP. Please clarify the required contents of Section 4 of the PWS. Is it to consist of a single QAP and QASP or are we to respond SMF by SMF as per the J.20 template?

There is some confusion on this, because the QAP could be more clearly defined as two distinct documents.  There is to be an overarching QAP, presently Sections 1-5 in the QAP Template, Attachment J.23, and additional QAP information to be developed for each SLA (Section 6 in the QAP template).  The QAP template will be divided into two separate documents, the first addressing the overarching QAP, and the second addressing the multi-section SLA QAP.  Just as the SLAs are not counted against Volume II or PWS page limits, neither will the SLA QAPs count against these QLAs.  The page limit guidance in this section, L.6.2.2 will be amended and clarified to reflect this.
146.  Reference: RFP Attachment J.7.

Please provide the “as of” dates/applicable period for the following:

(a) DISANet Work Breakout

(b) DISANet Accounts data

(c) Open TT & RIDS data.

(a) N/A – This worksheet is being deleted
(b) DISANet Accounts data – As of March 2008.
(c) Open TT & RIDS data – Snapshot from January 2008.

147.  Reference: RFP Attachment J.8.

To further clarify the accountability boundaries between Government roles and Contractor roles and responsibilities in our offer, we have annotated our assumptions our in this matrix. May we submit these and annotations to other RFP attachments as assumptions with our offer to be considered as outside Section L page limitations?

148.  Reference: RFP Attachment J.3

What is the “as of” date of this data?

The “As of” dates are provided on most of the worksheets.
a) DISANet accounts – March 2008
b) Daily Data TTs&RIDS – 01/29/07 – 03/24/08 

c) AverageWeekly TTs&RIDS – 01/29/07 – 03/24/08 – as per worksheet

d) Open TTs&RIDS – Snapshot January 2008

e) Monthly Help Desk Calls - 02/01/07 – 02/29/08 – as per worksheet
f) Call Volume - 02/01/07 – 02/29/08 – as per worksheet

g) Help Desk Survey – data collected Dec 07 – Feb 08 -  as per worksheet

h) Knowledgebase - 04/01/07 – 02/29/08 – as per worksheet

i) DISANet Work Breakout – N/A – worksheet is being deleted

j) DISANet Contractor Actions – N/A – worksheet is being deleted

Worksheet date info will be added or clarified as required.
149.  Reference: RFP, Section C, SOO, Table 1 and RFP Attachment J.8 (SMF Breakout).

Table 1 identifies Infrastructure Engineering as a shared (approximately equally shared) responsibility and in J.8 it is identified as a primarily Government responsibility (Infrastructure Engineering Manager – Government assumes majority of duties). Please clarify which is correct.

Table 1 in the SOO is correct.  However, J8 does not contradict this table.  The assignment of responsibility to a role manager does not necessarily directly correlate with the overall division of responsibilities between Government and contractor.  
150.  Reference: RFP M.3.2.2 Element 2-Staffing Approach requires submission of a Compensation Plan. It’s our assumption that this plan is outside the Management Approach page limitations.

 No, this counts against page limits.  See Question #37.
151.  Will the Government provide existing performance metrics for the relevant Service Management Functions - SMFs to establish a baseline that the contractors can use to measure improvements in quality of service levels?”

Existing contractor support is provided on a “best-effort” basis through a Time and Materials contract; there are no performance metrics in place.

152.  Reference: Attachments J-8 CORENet SMF Responsibilities; and J20 PWS Template “Section 3 Performance Requirements (PRS)”

To resolve some confusion – are the offerors required to fully define and address the entire scope of work regarding the sub-sections for each SMF or Functions as well as the associated support activities described in each SMF; or is the Government asking offerors to address those described in attachment J-8?

Attachment J.8 is the Government’s attempt at describing what it believes are the main/critical processes and roles within the SMFs.  It is being expanded and clarified, but it is not intended to fully represent the scope of work.  
It is the intent of the government that Attachment J.5, “DISC Functions and Missions Statement”, also identify contractor duties.  It is being reviewed and modified, to include classifying the tasks as contractor or government, to ensure it is accurate and detailed enough for this purpose.  J.5 is a task-centric view of the contractor functions, the SMFs and J-8 are a process-centric view of these functions.
It is the intent of the Government that the contractor addresses all SMFs when developing the PWS.  However, since the Microsoft MOF SMFs represent an ideal end state, and not all tenets, sub –processes and support activities would be followed or implemented, the Government is expecting the Offeror to determine what is practicable and cost-effective in defining the scope of work.  In addition, as explained elsewhere, the discrete functions defined in Section 3 of the PWS do not have to be defined as SMFs, or correlate directly with SMFs. 
Finally, it should be noted that the Government is planning on implementing the following critical SMFs in the existing CORENet IT environment:  Change, Release, Configuration, Incident, Problem and Service Level Management.  A strategy, deployment plan and schedule have not been developed, but it is expected that some aspects of each of the SMFs will be in place at the commencement of the CORENet task.   

.  
153.  If it is attachment J-8, our concern is that the scope of work that is defined only represents a smaller cross section of the actual work to be accomplished. Our analysis of the RFP and it’s attachments, leads us to believe that approximately 30% of the entire work defined in Section C Statement of Objectives, the MOF/SMF table, Attachments J1 Technical Architecture, J3 Software Inventory and J5 Mission and Functions are found in Attachment J-8.

See Question #152 regarding the use of Attachments J.5, and J.8; together they adequately define the scope of work.
154.  Which interpretation is correct (and should be used) when defining our WBS and associated PWS activities?  The functions associated with execution of SMF based services or those roles found only in attachment J8?

Per Question #152, the Offeror shall use Attachment J.5 in conjunction with J.8 and its own interpretation of the SMFs to define the WBS and PWS activies.
155.  By using the refined scope of work found in Attachment J8, a risk exists that we will not be capable of correctly defining the PWS. This potentially poses a risk for not only the offeror attempting to develop and submit the PWS, but to the very mission of DISA and the CORENet.

 Per Question #152, use of Attachment J.5 in defining the WBS and PWS will remove this risk.
156.  Our analysis of the answer to Question 10 Reference L.4.1, L.4.2 and J-8; illustrates that a definition of work and price to perform is the scope outlined in J-8 and that scope of work under a Fixed Price contract will not allow the contractor to perform the entire scope of work, and could jeopardize DISA’s and the offeror’s ability to be successful.

157.  The price evaluation factors in section M is still very vague without any real basis of comparison.  We respectfully request the Government's clarification on the basis of evaluation and the factors for comparison of the different pricing packages from the different contractors.  Without presenting a baseline for comparison and the layout of what dictate different level of categories:  i.e. Contractor A can reference its Sr. Network Engineer based on 8 years of experience, whereas Contractor B can reference its Sr. Network Engineer based on 15 years of experience.  However, from the Government's current approach, this will not be clearly coherent to the Government nor line up consistently and appropriately with the Government's IGCE for an accurate comparison.  Can the Government clarify its price evaluation and provide more details to allow for a more aligned basis of comparison?

158.  The RFP currently presents requirements based on the 21 SMFs, which comprise the total scope of this solicitation.  However, the pricing instruction in section L only request  labor rates and pricing for 4 of the 21 SMFs.  With that scenario, the submitted pricing would not fully cover the total scope of this Program.  Is this the Government's intention?

See Question #68.
159.  If the answer to question #158 is yes, how will the Government issue the FFP contract award ceiling for the Total Contract Scope given that the offeror has not submitted the pricing for the total contract scope?  

N/A
160.  Does the Compensation Plan count against the 25 total page limit for the Management Plan?  Compensation Plans are normally quite thorough and extensive and will not fit within the 25 pages allocated for the entire Management Plan.

See Question #37.
161.  Section M. - Element 2 - Staffing Approach - it states that the offeror must include a compensation plan for employees in the Proposal.  Do you want us to submit this information from just the prime or from all team members involved and will this count towards page limitations?

See Question #37.

162.  Will OLAs be counted against the page count? 

OLAs will not be counted against the page limits for the PWS.  Section L.6.2.2 will be amended to reflect this.

163.  What is the Acquisition Category (ACAT) for CORENet?

N/A
164.  What is the Mission Assurance Category (MAC) level of CORENet?

N/A
165.  Who is the Milestone Decision Authority (MDA) for CORENet?

N/A
166.  Are the only ODCs the Hardware, Software, and Travel? 

167.  Are contractors expected to provide a cost for the hardware and software CLINS? If not, are we expected to provide a price for it at all? Will this line item not be separately priced? 

The Hardware and Software CLIN will be separately priced at the task order level.  Pricing will be obtained at the time the requirement is identified.

168.  Section L.4.2 (1) The Service Management Functions listed for pricing do not coincide with the CLIN 1 requirements. Sections L and B seem to conflict with each other. Is it the Government’s intention for Contractors to provide pricing for both of these requirements? 

See Question #68.
169.  Is it the Government’s intention that all of the Service Management Functions are reflected in the CLINs? 

170.  Section M.3.4 part B refers to a sample task order. Is it the Government’s intention to provide a sample task order? 

See Question #15.

171.  Is the pricing required in sections B or L considered a sample task order? Will a task order for actual work be awarded based on either Section B or L to the winning offeror upon the IDIQ contract award? 

172.  Within attachments J7 and J8, total numbers of current contractor FTEs seem to conflict. At this time on the current contract, what are the total contractor FTEs? 

See Question #101.
173.  What function is performed by the Requirements Management and Liaison Team. Where does this function sit within the DISC organization and what functional manager do they report to?

Please refer to Attachment J.5, “DISC Functions and Missions Statement” for information on the role and placement of this organization.  
174.  Ref L.2.4 - Services Provisioning Mgmt – The offeror shall define and describe the processes, tools, and approaches to be used in the management of CORENet services provisioning. Should it include on-boarding provisioning?

“CORENet services provisioning” refers to all those functions the contractor will perform in supporting the CORENet infrastructure (providing CORENet services).   Inasmuch as the Government expects these functions to be performed on site at Government facilities, the government considers this to be “on-boarding provisioning”. 
175.  Will consideration be given and not penalized for proposing off-site support to the contract in order to provide efficiencies in the delivery of services?

176.  Reference Attachment J13 DISANet Asset Management Plan and CORENet SMF responsibilities-attachment J8. Is the inventory of IT assets currently up to date? Will the contractor have any responsibility for asset management as is implied by the list of contractor responsibilities under the Configuration Management SMF in attachment J8? Is all of the current equipment bar-coded?

The inventory is up-to-date, and equipment is bar-coded.  The contractor will have responsibility for asset management.  An enterprise-level asset-management and configuration management infrastructure using Altiris asset-management, inventorying and other tools is being developed to replace the existing limited configuration and asset management tools and manual processes now in place.   Deployment of this system should be underway, if not completed, by the commencement of the CORENet task.
177. Reference  J8. Will the contractor be responsible for CM At the remote sites? If so, what is the mechanism to obtain on-going CM data from those locations?

The contractor will be responsible for managing the CORENet CMDB, which is intended to be the single repository of information for all CORENet IT assets.  Development of configuration management capabilities for the CORENet is an ongoing process, and this end state has yet to be achieved.    This goal will be achieved to a great extent for CORENet network infrastructure and server devices, as change and release management for almost all of these assets are presently provided from the NCR.  Establishing configuration management for client systems outside the NCR is more problematic, and a strategy is still being developed for implementation of this capability.   See also Question #176.  
178.  Is the DISANet Control Center (DCC) the same thing as the “Network Watch Center”?

Yes.
179.  What is the basis for the Govt evaluation when comparing against all submitted offeror’s proposals given that all offerors will present different labor categories and even possibly the same labor categories naming convention but with different description and experience levels.  This would present a mix of different categories when comparing against a set of the Govt’s pre-determined IGCE analysis.  Respectfully request if the Govt could issue a list of standardized labor categories from the IGCE analysis at the contract RFP level for bidding purpose, but allow the winning offerer to select specific labor categories within that set to bid on resultant IDIQ delivery orders as part of the Performance based approach.

180.  Since there are labor categories that will be present in the 17 SMFs that are being excluded from the pricing request, how will the  Govt determines the overall contract award amount for Section B given that the CLIN specified in Section B covers the entire scope of the contract and all 21 SMF areas. 

See Question #68.
181.  How will the Govt determine the offeror’s projected total pricing based on labor categories  for each SMFs to be included in the contract award, since the Govt is only requesting for labor categories and pricing to be submitted as specified in Section L for the 4 designated SMF areas (out of the RFP 21 SMF areas)?

See Question #68.
182.  Would the Government consider extending the due date for offers to 15 Calendar Days after all vendor questions are answered and any Amendments to the RFP have been posted?

See Question #97.
183.  Will the possible amendment change the past performance questionnaire for our government clients and if so does it make sense to have them submit the existing J25 on May 5th?

No changes to the content of the questionnaire are anticipated.  The questionnaire due date will be amended to coincide with the proposal due date.  The Government will accept all questionnaires (including those indicating a due date of 5 May 2008) until the proposal due date and time specified in the amended RFP.
184.  Based on the delta from the time the submission is required to the time of award, will it be possible to make key personnel changes?  It will be very difficult for small businesses to keep specific people on the bench for the projected time difference between submittal and award.
This will be allowed, but substituted key personnel must have equal or greater qualifications and experience.
